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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Port of Pasco
January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

The results of our audit of the Port of Pasco are summarized below in accordance with Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Financial Statements

We issued an unmodified opinion on the fair presentation of the basic financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP).

Internal Control over Financial Reporting:

e Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

e Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the Port.

Federal Awards

Internal Control over Major Programs:

e Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

e Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

We issued an unmodified opinion on the Port’s compliance with requirements applicable to its
major federal program.
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We reported no findings that are required to be disclosed in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).

Identification of Major Federal Programs:

The following program was selected as a major program in our audit of compliance in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance.

CEDA No. Program or Cluster Title
20.106 Airport Improvement Program

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by
the Uniform Guidance, was $750,000.

The Port did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance.

SECTION Il — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None reported.

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS

None reported.
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CONNECTING HERE WITH THERE

§ Port of Pasco Administrative Office

» / PO RTOF Phone: 509.547.3378
Fax: 509.547.2547
portofpasco@portofpasco.org

1110 Osprey Pointe Blvd.

Suite 201
P.0. Box 769
Pasco, Washington U.S.A. 99301

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS Port Commissioners

Jean Ryckman
James T. Klindworth

Port of Pasco EIEEREES
January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017 Executive Director

Randy Hayden

This schedule presents the status of federal findings reported in prior audit periods.

Audit Period: Report Ref. No.: Finding Ref. No.: | CFDA Number(s):
1/1/2016-12/31/2016 1019221 2016-001 20.106

Federal Program Name and Granting Agency: | Pass-Through Agency Name:

Airport Improvement Program NA

U.S. Department of Transportation

Finding Caption:
The Port did not have adequate internal controls to ensure compliance with suspension and
debarment requirements.

Background:

The Port did not verify that the contractor was not suspended or debarred. Any payments to an
ineligible party are unallowable and would be subject to recovery by the funding agency.

We verified that the vendor was not suspended or debarred; therefore, we are not questioning
costs for the payments.

The Port was not aware the requirement applied to the contract for professional engineering
services.

Status of Corrective Action: (check one)

O Fully X Partially O] Not Corrected O Flndlng is considered no
Corrected Corrected longer valid

Corrective Action Taken:
The Airport Deputy Director and Finance Director at the Tri-Cities Airport both attended
training for federal grant awards in 2018.

Administration is currently working on a checklist for staff to follow to be compliant with the
federal uniform guidance 2 CFR 200. FAA is aware of the Port’s corrective action status.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Port of Pasco
January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

Board of Commissioners
Port of Pasco
Pasco, Washington

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Port of Pasco, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Port’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated September 24, 2018.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Port’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Port's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
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material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

In addition, we noted certain matters that we have reported to the management of the Port in a
separate letter dated September 24, 2018.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Port’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of the Port’s compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Port’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Port’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However,
this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also serves to
disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government
operations.

A

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

September 24, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Port of Pasco
January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

Board of Commissioners
Port of Pasco
Pasco, Washington

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM

We have audited the compliance of the Port of Pasco, with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the Port’s major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2017. The Port’s major federal programs are identified in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Port’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
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referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Port’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Port’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Port complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2017.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Management of the Port is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Port’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It
also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess
government operations.

A

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

September 24, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE PASSENGER FACILITY

CHARGE PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE

Port of Pasco
January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

Board of Commissioners
Port of Pasco
Pasco, Washington

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR PASSENGER FACILITY
CHARGES

We have audited the compliance of the Port of Pasco, with the compliance requirements described
in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies (Guide) issued by the Federal
Aviation Administration for its passenger facility charge program for the year ended December 31,
2017.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations
applicable to its passenger facility charge program.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Port’s compliance based on our audit. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Guide. Those
standards and the Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Port’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide
a legal determination of the Port’s compliance with those requirements.

Opinion on Compliance

In our opinion, the Port of Pasco complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred
to above that are applicable to its passenger facility charge program for the year ended
December 31, 2017.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Management of the Port is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws and regulations applicable to its passenger facility
charge program. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Port’s internal control
over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger
facility charge program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Guide, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of the passenger facility charge program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger facility charge program
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger facility charge
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also serves
to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government
operations.

A

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

September 24, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Port of Pasco
January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

Board of Commissioners
Port of Pasco
Pasco, Washington

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Port of Pasco, as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Port’s basic financial statements as listed on page 18.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Port’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
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an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Port of Pasco, as of December 31, 2017, and the changes in financial

position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed on page 18
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Port’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). The
accompanying Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges is presented for purposes of additional
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analysis as specified in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by
the Federal Aviation Administration. These schedules are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 24, 2018 on our consideration of the Port’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Port’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

o

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

September 24, 2018
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FINANCIAL SECTION

Port of Pasco
January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis — 2017

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Net Position — 2017

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position — 2017
Statement of Cash Flows — 2017

Notes to Financial Statement — 2017

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability - PERS 1 — 2017
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability — PERS 2/3 — 2017
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability — LEOFF 2 — 2017
Schedule of Employer Contributions — PERS 1 — 2017

Schedule of Employer Contributions — PERS 2/3 — 2017

Schedule of Employer Contributions — LEOFF 2 — 2017

SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards — 2017

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards — 2017
Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges — 2017

Notes to the Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges — 2017
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Port of Pasco
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Introduction

Our discussion and analysis of the Port of Pasco’s financial performance provides an overview of the
Port’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017. Please read it in conjunction
with the Port’s financial statements which begin immediately following this narrative.

The Port of Pasco is a local municipal corporation formed by the voters inhabiting approximately 80%
of Franklin County in 1940. The Port Commission, the governing body, is made up of three local
residents who are elected to a six-year term, with one of the nonpartisan positions up for election every
two years. The Port’s primary mission is economic development for the citizens of the district. In
accordance with the laws of Washington, the Commissioners have appointed an Executive Director to
manage Port operations, and a Port Finance Director to manage the Port’s finances.

The Port rents its developed land to industrial and commercial users who then build or rent suitable
facilities on the land. Additionally, the Port acquires undeveloped land and adds infrastructure, such
as roads and utilities, which facilitate industrial and commercial development of the land.

The Tri-Cities Airport serves the regions of southeastern Washington and northeastern Oregon with
direct daily commercial air service to Seattle on Alaska Airlines, Salt Lake City, Seattle and Minneapolis
on Delta Airlines and Denver and San Francisco on United Airlines. Weekly air service to Las Vegas,
Phoenix-Mesa and seasonal service to Los Angeles is provided by Allegiant Airlines. Year end 2017
statistics show passenger boardings increased by 589 passengers to 374,843, parking lot activity
increased 20%, car rental activity was up 12% and restaurant concessions were up 61%. Concessions
reported strong sales due to the opening of the new restaurant area, bar, coffee shop and gift shop.

Airport projects included the East General Aviation Apron Construction Project, the Transportation
Security Administration In-Line Baggage System, and the Taxiway Alpha Relocation Project for
2018/2019. Airport projects in 2017 included the Tri-Cities Airport Terminal Expansion and
Renovation Project, construction of the general aviation ramp improvement project, and the design of
the Taxiway A realignment and rehabilitation.

In the 1990’s, the Port acquired 250 acres of land for the Pasco Processing Center, intended to serve as
an industrial park specifically for major food processing companies. An ongoing joint marketing effort
between the City of Pasco, the Port and the Tri-City Industrial Development Council (TRIDEC) has
been working to attract new companies to the center. There are already four major food processing
businesses employing 750 FTEs with three supporting industries on board. In 2008, Syngenta Seed Co.
purchased 39.5 acres to construct a state-of-the-art vegetable seed-drying plant that was completed in
the fall of 2009 to process sweet corn and small-seeded vegetable seeds at a cost of $41,600,000. In 2009,
3E Properties purchased 12.6 acres for processing fresh-pack specialty potatoes. In January of 2014,
Kenyon Zero Storage, Inc. purchased the last 16.7 acres to construct a 400,216 square foot facility for
freezer/cold storage of vegetables grown in the region. This completes the large-lot food processing
portion of the development. Of the original 250 acres, only 30 acres remain for sale in the northwest
corner of the Pasco Processing Center in a tract of land named the Foster Wells Business Park (FWBP)

Page 19



Port of Pasco
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

which is currently divided into 13 building sites ranging in size from 2 to 10 acres. These parcels are
intended for small-scale facilities that supplement or complement the existing large food processors.
The sites offer opportunities for manufacturing, warehousing, packaging, distribution, goods and
services providers. The first business in this section of the Park was Teton Gold, LLC who purchased
3.22 acres in 2003-2004. In 2011, Second Harvest Food Bank of the Inland Northwest was the second
business to locate in FWBP on 2.5 acres. In October, 2014, Rock Placing Company purchased 2.22 acres
adjacent to the Second Harvest Food Bank property. The final cost to install the FWBP road and other
infrastructure was $864,295 and will be paid through future land sales. Most recently in 2015 and 2016,
a total of 7.46 acres were sold to Volm Companies for construction of a 217,800 square foot light
industrial facility to support the major food processors. The most recent land sale was in 2016 for 1.99
acres to Teton West, adjacent to the parcel they purchased in 2003.

The Port is also actively developing its waterfront along the Columbia River in Pasco, a 110 acre parcel
of ground known as Osprey Pointe. Flexibility will be a key feature of Osprey Pointe which will offer
professional offices and corporate headquarters along the waterfront, and “flex space” buildings at the
non-waterfront areas integrating offices, light manufacturing and assembly areas, research facilities
and testing laboratories, and storage and warehouse space. Smaller flex/light industrial/service-
oriented buildings are planned for the remaining areas of Osprey Pointe, and may include small
businesses, professional services, restaurants, or other support services. Along with the buildings, a
high priority is placed on public access and enjoyment of the waterfront. Pedestrian trails, wildlife and
nature-scape areas are all part of the amenities in Osprey Pointe. The first phase of construction was
completed in March of 2011 and includes a 20,000 square foot building and infrastructure to support
five additional building sites. The Port of Pasco borrowed an additional $4,415,000 in early 2010, for the
building and infrastructure.

In addition to the Port’s operating businesses, it is managing a complex and costly clean-up of
environmental damages caused by several former tenants of the Port. The Environmental Remediation
Site is currently contaminated with petroleum, and it’s by products that seeped into the ground. The
cleanup project is now nearing completion. The only costs remaining are closeout and ongoing
monitoring. This contingency is covered in note 11 in the notes to the financial statements.

The Port of Pasco is a municipal government. As such, the Port collects property tax revenues from the
property owners within the Port district. These tax revenues are used to pay debt service on its
General Obligation bonds and support the capital investments made by the Port.

The Government Accounting Standards Board has prescribed a new method of financial reporting for
all government entities. The Port of Pasco has adopted this model for reporting starting in 2003.

Issues Facing the Port of Pasco

There are issues facing the Port that could result in material changes in its financial position in the long
term. Among those issues are:
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Port of Pasco
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Marine Security pending requirements would result in an increase in vehicle inspections resulting in
higher costs associated with these inspections. The Port is currently without a marine operator. As a
result of two major shipping companies who no longer are calling at the Port of Portland, barging of

commodities (mostly agricultural) decreased substantially and shifted to trucks and rail primarily to

Tacoma.

Federal reimbursement of Law Enforcement Officers, who man the Screening Point at the airport, is on
a year to year contract based on the government’s ability to get funding. This additional expense of
approximately $138,000 would become the Port’s responsibility. The Port of Pasco received additional
5-year reimbursable funding through a cooperative agreement with Department of Homeland Security
grant in June 2013. However, this additional funding will not fully reimburse the Port for its additional
expenses.

Intensive investment in infrastructure is required to meet air safety initiatives at the Port’s airport.
While the federal government bears the majority of these costs, the Port will bear a share of the cost and
will have to manage the disruptions in operation that they will cause.

The Port is presently involved in a soil clean-up proceeding with the Department of Ecology along with
other parties at the marine terminal. The Port’s current liability is estimated at approximately $541,086.
In the opinion of management, the Port’s exposure may be covered in whole or in part in combination
of PLP (potentially liable party) settlement dollars and government grants. The Port has booked this as
a liability in its statements.

Financial Highlights

In 2017 the Port’s overall operating revenues increase by $1,426,103 or 13% over 2016 business revenue
levels. The increase was in airport operations, marine terminal operations and property lease/rental
operations.

The Port’s overall operating expenses increased in 2017, by $2,504,985 or 15% over 2016 operating
expense levels. Of this amount, depreciation expense increased 21%, general operations increased 12%
and general and administration operations increased 9%. The Port had overall net loss of $1,606,319 in
2017. Included in this amount is capital contributions of $2,663,414.

Financial Analysis of the Port of Pasco

The Statement of Net Position summarizes the ending balances in Net Position between December 31,
2016 and December 31, 2017 and the net change in years 2016 and 2017. For details refer to the
statement of net position note 1, note 12, and note 18 in the notes to the financial statements.

Statement of Net Position 2017 2016 Net Change
Current Assets $17,768,489 $18,068,220 ($299,731)
Noncurrent Assets $105,630 $48,392 $57,238
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Statement of Net Position 2017 2016 Net Change
Net Capital Assets $126,068,100 $126,758,772 ($690,672)
Total Assets $143,942,219 $144,875,384 ($933,165)
Deferred Outflows of Resources $255,485 $428,995 ($173,510)
Current Liabilities $3,236,051 $3,511,902 ($275,851)
Noncurrent Liabilities $30,228,078 $32,360,445 ($2,132,367)
Total Liabilities $33,464,129 $35,872,347 ($2,408,218)
Deferred Inflows of Resources $422 415 $80,257 $342,158
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt $97,153,723 $96,872,775 $280,948
Restricted Net Position $4,800,567 $7,717,773 ($2,917,206)
Unrestricted Net Position $8,356,870 $4,761,228 $3,595,642
Total Net Position $110,311,160 $109,351,776 $959,384

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position is summarized below for the
years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Fund Net Position 2017 2016 Net Change
Operating Revenues:
Airport Operations $8,410,003 $7,327,533 $1,082,470
Marine Terminal Operations $6,208 $3,530 $2,678
Property lease/rental operations $2,988,048 $2,647,093 $340,955
Total Operating Revenue $11,404,259 $9,978,156 $1,426,103
Operating Expenses:
General Operations $5,946,149 $5,236,699 $709,450
General & Administrative $2,982,966 $2,721,531 $261,434
Depreciation $7,431,507 $5,897,406 $1,534,101
Total Operating Expenses $16,360,622 $13,855,637 $2,504,985
Operating Income (Loss) ($4,956,363) ($3,877,481) ($1,078,883)
Non-Operating Revenue (Loss) $686,630 $3,196,612 ($2,509,983)
Capital Contributions $2,663,414 $3,535,824 ($872,410)
Change in Net Position ($1,606,319) $2,854,955 ($4,461,274)
Net Position-Beginning of Period $109,351,776 $106,496,820 $2,854,956
Prior Period Adjustments $2,565,703 $0 $2,565,703
Net Position-End of Period $110,311,160 $109,351,775 $959,385
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Budgets and Future Events

Each November the Port of Pasco Commissioners adopt a consolidated annual operating budget for the
ensuing year.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

This table summarizes the year end balances in capital assets for 2017 and 2016 and the change in the
year end balances for December 31, 2017. See note 4 in the notes to the financial statements.

Capital Assets 2017 2016 Net Change
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Land $6,417,303 $6,414,609 $2,694
Construction in Progress $2,986,836 $57,642,279 ($54,655,442)

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated $9,404,139 $64,056,888 ($54,652,748)
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated

Property $206,450,635 $154,061,123 $52,389,512
Machinery and Equipment $5,139,884 $6,005,538 ($865,654)
Less Accumulated Depreciation ($94,926,558)  ($97,364,777) $2,438,219
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated $116,663,960 $62,701,884 $53,962,076
Total Capital Assets, Net $126,068,100 $126,758,772 ($690,672)
Debt

At December 31, 2017 the Port of Pasco owes $28,914,377 of which $5,179,388 is Long Term General
Obligation Bonds and $22,272,520 Long Term Revenue Bonds. Additional debt is on an existing CERB
loan of $720,466 borrowed in 2009 to construct an office building for the Port’s biggest tenant and a
Hanford Area Economic Investment Fund loan of $742,003 to purchase land at the Tri-Cities Airport.
See note 8 and note 9 in the notes to the financial statements.

Using the Annual Report

The financial section of this annual report consists of three parts: MD&A, the basic financial statements,
and the notes to the financial statements. The basic financial statements include: the statement of net
position, the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net fund position, and the statement of
cash flows. The statement of net position and the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund
net position provide information about the activities of the Port as a whole, and present a longer-term
view of the Port’s finances.
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The Port of Pasco operates using one fund. All of the Port’s operations are accounted for in the General
Fund. Special restricted funds are as follows: the Passenger Facilities Charge fund, Customer Facility
Charges, and a reserve fund for the 2014 revenue bond.

GABSB 34 requires a separate fund financial statement for each Port fund that is supported by a separate
debt issue. The Port bond issues are general in nature, and all are “General Obligation” bonds of the
Port. Therefore, all the assets and liabilities of the Port are presented in one Proprietary Fund. No
allocation of assets or liabilities to particular lines of business is required by GASB and no such
information is presented in these financial statements.

A separate Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Fund Balances is also presented in GASB 34
and in BARS formats for your consideration.

The Port maintains a subsidiary corporation, called the Port of Pasco Economic Development
Corporation established pursuant to State law for the purpose of issuing Industrial Revenue Bonds.
The financial information is consolidated with other Port financial information in this report.

The Port of Pasco has one trust account for Employee Medical Reimbursement Trust.
Reporting the Port as a Whole

Our analysis of the Port as a whole begins on the following page. Understanding the financial trend of
the Port begins with understanding the Statement of Net Position. Looking at these two reports, you
should be able to determine if the Port is better off financially this year than it was in the past.

The statement of net position and the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net fund
position include all of the assets and liabilities of the Port using the accrual basis of accounting, which
is the method used by most private sector businesses. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses
are taken into account regardless of when the cash is received or paid by the Port.

These two reports show the Port’s net position and the changes to it during 2017. The Port’s net
position is its assets minus its liabilities. This is one measure of financial position of the Port. Over
time, increases or decreases in the Port’s net position is a good indicator of whether its financial
strength is improving or deteriorating. You need to consider other factors not shown on these two
financial reports in order to assess the Port’s true financial condition. Factors such as changes in the
Port’s tax base and the condition of the Port’s asset base are also important when assessing the overall
financial condition of the Port.

Since the Port is a Special Purpose government, all of its assets and liabilities are shown in its
Proprietary Fund. The Port incurs a substantial amount of governmental activity expense, such as Port
management and administration, public facility maintenance, and public meeting expense. However,
all of these expenses of the Port are also reported in the Proprietary Fund. This “one fund” model is
used in compliance with the rules of GASB 34 which state that separately issued debt and separately
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classified assets are needed in order for a separate fund to exist. Most of these governmental costs are
contained in the General and Administrative cost centers shown on the Port’s financial reports.

Fund Financial Statements

The Port’s Fund is a “Proprietary Fund” as defined in GASB 34. When the Port charges someone to use
property or Port services, the revenue earned is like a business revenue -hence the name “proprietary”

fund. The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net fund position shown above is the Port’s
fund based financial statement.

The Port as a Whole

The Port accounts for its activities in a single Proprietary Fund. The discussion below explains the
Port’s overall financial situation for the year ending 12/31/2017.

The Port’s Assets decreased by $690,672 as of 12/31/2017. The book value of the capital asset base
increased $53,964,770 in 2017 as a result of improvements to the airport, railway upgrades at Big Pasco
Industrial Center and other improvements, net of depreciation. The Port’s expenses about $7,431,507
per year in depreciation charges. When the Port invests more than that amount in new capital assets in
a year, the book value of the asset base increases. The rate of new capital investment increased in 2017
compared to 2016.

The Port borrowed $1,000,000 in 2014 to purchases land for future runway expansion. The Port invests
unused bond proceeds in short term investments. The Port has a capital plan calling for over
$10,000,000 in capital projects over the next five years, with major improvements at the airport. In 2014
the Port issued revenue bonds and the rest of the expansion is expected to be funded from tax
revenues, port funds, grants or proceeds from sale of property.

The Port’s current liabilities as of 12/31/2017 are debts the Port will repay in 2018. The total current
liabilities decreased from $3,511,902 to $3,236,051. The decrease was due to accounts payable at year
end being lower by $202,161 compared to 2016.

Port Capital Asset Classifications 12/31/2017

Construction

Equipment
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2% T e

Property
94%
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The Port’s long term liabilities at 2017-year end were $30,228,078, a decrease of $2,132,368 from 2016
due to a decrease in net pension liability and long-term debt. Accrued environmental liability costs
decreased as a result of reassessment of future costs of environmental remediation. The Port has
sufficient funds in an account called Marine Terminal currently in Cash and Cash Equivalents, the
balance of which is $396,699 which along with continued Environmental operating grants,
management believes will be sufficient to cover the Port’s share of the remaining clean-up costs.

Port Long-Term Debt as of December 31, 2017

35,000,000
30,000,000
25,000,000
20,000,000
15,000,000
10,000,000
5,000,000
0

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

The Port has booked the acquisition of all assets at historical costs on its Statement of Net Position. The
Port has received certain grants in aid of construction or acquisition of certain of its assets, including its
airport. The contributions received from other governments for these assets are shown as
“Contributions” on the Port’s statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net fund position. The
Port books depreciation expenses for these contributed assets over the useful life of the asset.

GABSB 34 requires the Port to capitalize and depreciate all of the assets owned or controlled by the Port,
which is done on these financial statements.

The Port had operating revenues of $11,404,259 in 2017, a 14% increase from 2016. The Port’s operating
expenses were $16,360,622, an 18% increase from 2016. The Port’s change in net position decreased
$1,606,319, which includes $2,663,414 in capital grants.

All the functions of the Port are considered in the numbers shown on the next graph, including the cost
of general government of the Port district. The capital assets of the Port are also reported in the Port’s
Proprietary Fund. Unexpended bond proceeds and bonded debt amounts are also reported in the
Proprietary Fund.

This aggregation of all of the Port’s assets and operations into a single fund is a result of the Port’s
being a special purpose government that operates as a proprietary fund. Larger Ports may have to
report some of their activities in separate funds.
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Port Increase (Decrease) in Net Fund Position
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17,000,000

12,000,000

7,000,000
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(2.000.000) 2014 2016 2017
—Operating Revenue 9,289,390 9,572,392 9,980,976 11,404,259
-=-Operating Expenses 13,357,098 14,196,847 13,855,637 16,360,622
- Nonoperating Revenue (Loss) 3,814,398 2,940,656 3,219,484 686,630
—«Capital Contributions 6,270,826 11,401,206 3,510,133 2,663,414
~Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 6,017,517 9,717,406 2,854,956 (1,606,319)

Contacting the Port’s Financial Management

The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors
with a general overview of the Port’s finances and to show the Port’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report, or if you need additional financial information, please
contact Donna Watts, Director of Finance, at PO Box 769, Pasco, WA 99301 or by phone (509) 547-3378.
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Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 1 C-1) $ 10,679,906
Accounts Receivable (Net) (Note 1 C-3) $ 892,712
Taxes Receivable (Note 1 C-3 & Note 3) $ 43,227
Due from Other Governments (Note 1 C-4) $ 984,317
Inventories (Note 1 C-5) $ 200
Prepayments and Other Current Assets (Note 1 C-6) $ 367,560
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 1 C-7) $ 4,800,567
Total Current Assets $ 17,768,489
Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets: (Note 1 C-8, Note 4 & Note 5)
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land $ 6,417,303
Construction in Progress $ 2,986,836
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Property $ 206,450,635
Equipment $ 5,139,884
Less: Accumulated Depreciation $  (94,926,558)
Total Capital Assets (Net) $ 126,068,100
Net Pension Asset $ 105,630
Total Noncurrent Assets $ 126,173,730
Total Assets $ 143,942,219
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions (Note 1 C-9 & Note 6) $ 255,485
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 255,485
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses (Note 1 C-12) $ 840,506
Accrued Interest Payable (Note 1 C-12) $ 182,497
Bonds, Notes, and Loans Payable (Note 8) $ 1,619,546
Other Current Liabilities (Note 1 C-12) $ 593,502
Total Current Liabilities $ 3,236,051

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated Absences (Note 1 C-10) $ 504,695
Bonds, Notes, and Loans Payable (Note 8) $ 27,294,831
Soils Cleanup Liability $ 541,086
Unearned Revenue (Note 1 C-14) $ 90,576
Net Pension Liability (Note 6) $ 1,796,890
Total Noncurrent Liabilities $ 30,228,078
Total Liabilities $ 33,464,129
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions (Note 1 C-9 & Note 6) $ 422,415
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 422,415
Net Position
Net Investments in Capital Assets $ 97,153,723
Restricted for: (Note 1 C-7 & Note 12)
Restricted for Debt Service $ 1,827,800
Restricted for PFC Projects $ 1,005,738
Restricted for CFC Projects $ 1,967,029
Unrestricted $ 8,356,870
Total Net Position $ 110,311,160

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Operating Revenues
Airport Operations
Marine Terminal Operations
Property Lease/Rental Operations

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
General Operations
General and Administrative
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest Income
Tax Levied for General Purposes
Passenger Facility Charges
Customer Facility Charges
Interest Expense
Election Expenses
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions
Capital Contributions
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning of Period
Prior Period Adjustments

Net Position - End of Period

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Port of Pasco
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees

11,231,355
(5,012,076)
(4,556,435)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Receipts (Payments) from Nonoperating costs

@h | B P

&

1,662,844

2,071,379

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Principal Paid on Capital Debt
Interest Paid on Capital Debt
Receipts from Property Taxes
Capital Contributions
Purchases of Capital Assets

&+

2,071,379

(1,473,116)
(1,119,655)
2,135,992
2,128,747
(7,037,236)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing
Activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest and Dividends
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

@h | H s s RS

(5,365,268)

75,696
75,696

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances - Beginning of the Year

(1,555,349)
17,035,822

Balances - End of the Year

@S| PR A | R A

15,480,473

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
(Used)

by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Provided
(Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Receivables, Net
Accounts and Other Payables
Accrued Expenses

(4,956,363)

7,431,507

(242,462)
(649,217)
79,379

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

RS IRS SRS S

1,662,844

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Port of Pasco have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The significant accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The Port of Pasco was incorporated in 1940 and operates under the laws of the State of
Washington applicable to a port district.

The Port of Pasco is a special purpose government and provided a shipping terminal, two
industrial parks and an airport to the general public and is supported primarily through user
charges.

The Port is governed by an elected three member board. As required by generally accepted
accounting principles, management has considered all potential component units in defining the
reporting entity. The Port has one blended component unit, see Note 15.

B. Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The accounting records of the Port are maintained in accordance with methods prescribed by
the State Auditor under the authority of Chapter 43.09 RCW. The Port uses the Budgeting,
Accounting and Reporting System for GAAP Port Districts in the State of Washington.

Funds are accounted for on a cost of services or an economic resources measurement focus. This
means that all assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their
activity are included on their statements of net position (or balance sheets). Their reported fund
position is segregated into net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted
components of net position. Operating statements present increases (revenues and gains) and
decreases (expenses and losses) in net position. The Port discloses changes in cash flows by a
separate statement that presents their operating, noncapital financing, capital and related
financing and investing activities.

The Port uses the full-accrual basis of accounting where revenues are recognized when earned
and expenses are recognized when incurred. Capital asset purchases are capitalized and long-
term liabilities are accounted for in the appropriate funds.

The Port distinguishes between operating revenues and expenses from non-operating ones.
Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with the Port’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the Port are charges to customers for leasing Port property. The Port also recognizes
as operating revenue usage fees. Operating expenses for the Port include the cost of services,
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administrative expenses, depreciation on capital assets, etc. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

C. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

It is the Port of Pasco’s policy to invest all temporary cash surpluses. At December 31, 2017
the treasurer was holding $10,679,906 in short-residual investments of surplus cash. This
amount is classified on the statement of net position as cash and cash equivalents.

The amounts reported as cash and cash equivalents also include compensating balances
maintained with certain banks in lieu of payments for services rendered. The average
compensating balances maintained during 2017 were approximately $10,300,000.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Port considers all highly liquid
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents. See Note C7.

2. Investments

See Note 2, Deposits and Investments.

3. Receivables

Taxes receivable consists of property taxes and related interest and penalties (See Note 3,
Property Tax). Accrued interest receivable consists of amounts earned on investments, notes,
and contracts at the end of the year.

Customer accounts receivable consist of amounts owed from private individuals or
organizations for goods and services including amounts owed for which billings have been
prepared. Notes and contracts receivable consist of amounts owed on open account from
private individuals or organizations for goods and services rendered.

Receivables have been recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts. Because property
taxes and special assessments are considered liens on property, no estimated uncollectible
amounts are established. As of December 31, 2017, the Port had $156,774 in the Allowance
for Doubtful Accounts.

A review is done each month of the outstanding delinquent accounts to insure that all
accounts 31 days or over are covered. Currently the balance in the allowance for doubtful
accounts is sufficient to cover all delinquent accounts. If an account needs to be written off,
it is brought to the governing board for their approval, but only after all attempts have been
made to collect.

4. Amounts Due to and from Other Governmental Units
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These accounts include amounts due to or from other governments for grants, entitlements,
temporary loans, taxes and charges for services.

Inventories

Inventories in governmental funds consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The
cost is recorded as expenditure at the time individual inventory items are purchased. The
reserve for inventory is equal to the ending amount of inventory to indicate that a portion of
the fund balance is not available for future expenditures. A comparison to market value is
not considered necessary.

Inventories are valued by the FIFO method (which approximates the market value).

Prepayments and Other Current Assets

Other current assets consist of prepaid expenses. Prepaid expenses total $367,560 for the year
ended December 31, 2017.

Restricted Assets and Liabilities

These accounts contain resources for construction and debt service, including current and
delinquent special assessments receivable. The current portions of related liabilities is shown
as Payables from Current Restricted Assets. Specific debt service reserve requirements are
described in Note 8, Long-Term Debt.

A new restricted account has been established for Passenger Facility Charges approved by
the FAA on August 13, 1993, in accordance with section 158.29 of the code of Federal
Regulations Part 158.

The restricted assets are composed of the following;:

Cash and Investments - Debt Service $ 1,827,800
Cash and Investments - Passenger Facility Charges $ 1,005,738
Cash and Investments - Customer Facility Charges $ 1,967,029

$ 4,800,567

Capital Assets
See Note #4, Capital Assets.

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are
reported in the Statement of Net Position. Capital assets are defined by the Port as assets with
an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one
year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.
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Costs for additions or improvements to capital assets are capitalized when they increase the
effectiveness or efficiency of the asset.

The cost for normal maintenance and repairs are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during construction phase of the capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The total interest expense
incurred by the Port during the current fiscal year was $1,300,015. Of this amount, $80,388
was included as part of the cost of capital assets under construction in connection with
Terminal Security Expansion projects.

The Port has acquired certain assets with funding provided by federal financial assistance
programs. Depending on the terms of the agreements involved, the federal government could
retain an equity interest in these assets. However, the Port has sufficient legal interest to
accomplish the purposes for which the assets were acquired, and has included such assets
within the applicable amount.

The original cost of operating property retired or otherwise disposed of and the cost of
installation, less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation. However, in the case of the
sale of a significant operating unit or system, the original cost is removed from the Port plant
accounts, accumulated depreciation is charged with the accumulated depreciation related to
the property sold, and the net gain or loss on disposition is credited or charged to income.

Property, plant, and equipment of the Port is depreciated using the using the straight line
method with useful lives of 1 to 50 years.

9. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

The Port reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources and for deferred outflows
of resources. Deferred outflows of resources consist of deferred outflow of resources related
to pensions. Deferred inflows of resources consist of deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions.

10. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation and
sick leave. The Port of Pasco records unpaid leave for compensated absences as an expense
and liability when incurred.

Vacation pay, which may be accumulated up to 30 days, is payable upon resignation,
retirement or death. Sick leave may accumulate indefinitely. Twenty-five (25) percent of
outstanding sick leave is payable upon resignation, retirement or death.

11. Pensions
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For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of all state sponsored pension plans and additions to/deductions from
those plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

12. Other Accrued Liabilities

These accounts consist of accrued wages and accrued employee benefits.

13. Long-term Debt
See Note 8, Long-Term Debt.

14. Unearned Revenues

This account includes amounts recognized as receivables but not revenues because the
revenue recognition criteria has not been met.

15. Fund Reserves and Designations

In accordance with bond resolutions and certain related agreements, separate restricted funds
are required to be established. The assets held in these funds are restricted for specific uses,
including construction, debt service and other special reserve requirements.

Assets and liabilities shown as current in the accompanying balance sheets exclude current
maturities on revenue bonds and accrued interest thereon because debt service funds
provided for their payment.

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments

Deposits

Cash on hand as petty cash at December 31, 2017 was $450. The carrying amount of the Port’s deposits
was $67,708 and the bank balance was $8,333,375.

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in event of a failure of a
depository financial institution, the Port would not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. The Port deposits and certificate
of deposits are mostly covered by federal depository insurance (FDIC) or collateral held in a multiple
financial institution collateral pool administered by the Washington Public Deposit Protection
Commission (PDPC).
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The Port does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. Of the Port of Pasco’s total position of
$15,480,473 in 2017, $0 is exposed to custodial credit risk because the investments are held for the Port of
Pasco by the Franklin Country Treasurer and the Local Government Investment Pool.

Investments
Investments are subject to the following risk.

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk the Port may face should interest rate variances affect the
fair value of investments. The Port does not have a formal policy that addresses interest rate risk.

In addition to the interest rate risk disclosed above, the Port includes investments with fair value highly
sensitive to interest rate changes.

Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or the counterpart to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The Port does not have a formal policy that addresses credit risk.

Investments in Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP)

The Port is a participant in the Local Government Investment Pool was authorized by Chapter 294, Laws
of 1986, and is managed and operated by the Washington State Treasurer. The State Finance Committee
is the administrator of the statute that created the pool and adopts rules. The State Treasurer is
responsible for establishing the investment policy for the pool and reviews the policy annually and
proposed changes are reviewed by the LGIP advisory Committee.

Investments in the LGIP, a qualified external investment pool, are reported at amortized cost which
approximates fair value. The LGIP is an unrated external investment pool. The pool portfolio is invested
in a manner that meets the maturity, quality, diversification and liquidity requirements set forth by the
GASBS 79 for external investments pools that elect to measure, for financial reporting purposes,
investments at amortized cost. The LGIP does not have any legally binding guarantees of share values.
The LGIP does not impose liquidity fees or redemption gates on participant withdrawals.

The Office of the State Treasurer prepares a stand-alone LGIP financial report. A copy of the report is
available from the Office of the State Treasurer, PO Box 40200, Olympia, Washington 98504-0200, online
at http:/ /www .tre.wa.gov.

The Port had $7,146,648 in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) as of December 31, 2017.
Note 3 - Property Taxes

The County Treasurer acts as an agent to collect property taxes levied in the county for all taxing
authorities.
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Property Tax Calendar
January 1 Taxes are levied and become an enforceable lien against properties.
February 14 Tax bills are mailed.
April 30 First of two equal installment payments is due.
May 31 Assessed value of property established for next year’s levy at 100 percent
of market value.
October 31 Second installment is due.

Property taxes are recorded as a receivable and revenue when levied. No allowance for uncollectible
taxes is established because delinquent taxes are considered fully collectible. Prior year tax levies were
recorded using the same principal, and delinquent taxes are evaluated annually.

The Port may levy up to 45 cents per $1,000 of assessed valuation for general government services.
Washington State Constitution and Washington State Law, RCW 84.55.010, limit the rate. The district
may also levy taxes at a lower rate.

The Port’s regular levy for the year 2017 was $.29475614 per $1,000 on an assessed valuation of
$6,826,198,816 for a total regular levy of $2,012,064 minus adjustments of $1,845 and additional revenue
in lieu of property taxes of $122,782, which comes to $2,133,001. In 2016 the regular tax levy was
$1,937,094.

Note 4 - Capital Assets

Major expenses for capital assets, including capital leases and major repairs that increase useful lives, are
capitalized. Our capitalization threshold is $5,000 and the asset has a useful life of 1 or more years, except
for personal computers, which are expensed. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are accounted
for as expenses when incurred. All capital assets are valued at historical costs. For donated assets, where
historical cost is not known, the estimated market value at time of acquisition is used.

The Port of Pasco has acquired certain assets with funding provided by federal financial assistance
programs. Depending on the terms of the agreements involved, the federal government could retain an
equity interest in these assets. However, the Port has sufficient legal interest to accomplish the purposes
for which the assets were acquired, and has included such assets with the applicable account.

(The original cost of operating property retired or otherwise disposed of and the cost of installation, less
salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation). (However, in the case of the sale of a significant
operating unit or system, the original cost is removed from the Port plant accounts, accumulated
depreciation is charged with the accumulated depreciation related to the property sold, and the net gain
or loss on disposition is credited or charged to income).

During 2017, the Port of Pasco capitalized $80,388 of interest costs for funds borrowed to finance the
construction of capital assets. The total interest cost for the year was $1,300,015, which includes the
capitalized interest cost.
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Depreciation expense is charged to operations to allocate the cost of capital assets over their estimated

useful lives, using the straight-line method with useful lives of 1 to 40 years

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2017 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
1/1/2017 12/31/2017
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Land $6,414,609 $34,399 $31,705 $6,417,303
Construction in Progress $58,177,736  $7,800,398  $62,991,298  $2,986,836
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated  $64,592,345  $7,834,797 $63,023,003 $9,404,139
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Property $154,061,123 $62,773,858  $10,384,346  $206,450,635
Machinery and Equipment $6,005,538 $217,441 $1,083,095 $5,139,884
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated $160,066,661 $62,991,299  $11,467,441  $211,590,519
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Property $93,191,977  $7,101,040 $8,882,092 $91,410,926
Machinery and Equipment $4,172,800 $330,467 $987,635 $3,515,632
Total Accumulated Depreciation $97,364,777 $7,431,507 $9,869,727 $94,926,558
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, net $62,701,884  $55,559,792 $1,597,714  $116,663,960
Total Noncurrent Assets $127,294,229 $63,394,588  $64,620,717 $126,068,100

Note 5 - Construction Commitments

The Port has active construction projects as of December 31, 2017. The projects include: terminal

baggage system, airfield ramp design and construction, taxiway realignment design, road design, and

parking lot design and construction.

At year-end the district’s commitments with contractors are as follows:

Project Spent to Date Rema.mmg
Commitment
Terminal Baggage System $ 419300 % 377,580
Airfield Ramp Design & Construction $ 1,953,471 $ 4,079,308
Taxiway Realignment Design $ 203,227 % 271,773
Road Design $ 11,248 $ 33,743
Parking Lot Design and Construction $ 457,272  $ 50,176
$ 3,044519 % 4,812,579
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Of the committed balance of $4,812,579, the Port will be reimbursed $4,274,674 from grant revenues and
the Port will provide the remaining financing from Cash and Cash Equivalents.

Note 6 - Pension Plans

The following table represents the aggregate pension amounts for all plans subject to the requirements
of the GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions for the year 2017:

Aggregate Pension Amounts - All Plans
Pension liabilities $  (1,796,890)

Pension assets $ 105,630
Deferred outflows of resources $ 255,485
Deferred inflows of resources $  (422,415)
Pension expense/expenditures $ 83,328

State Sponsored Pension Plans

Substantially all the Port of Pasco’s full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of
the following statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of
Retirement Systems, under cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and
defined contribution retirement plans. The state Legislature establishes, and amends, laws pertaining to
the creation and administration of all public retirement systems.

The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary government of the State
of Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The DRS CAFR may be
obtained by writing to:

Department of Retirement Systems
Communications Unit

P.O. Box 48380

Olympia, WA 98540-8380

Or the DRS CAFR may be downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov.
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

PERS members include elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals and
Superior Courts; employees of the legislature; employees of district and municipal courts; employees of
local governments; and higher education employees not participating in higher education retirement
programs. PERS is comprised of three separate pension plans for membership purposes. PERS plans 1
and 2 are defined benefit plans, and PERS plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a defined contribution

component.
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PERS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as
two percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service. The
AFC is the average of the member’s 24 highest consecutive service months. Members are eligible for
retirement from active status at any age with at least 30 years of service, at age 55 with at least 25 years
of service, or at age 60 with at least five years of service. Members retiring from active status prior to the
age of 65 may receive actuarially reduced benefits. Retirement benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect
the choice of a survivor benefit. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, an
optional cost-of-living adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible
by the Department of Labor and Industries. PERS 1 members were vested after the completion of five
years of eligible service. The plan was closed to new entrants on September 30, 1977.

Contributions

The PERS Plan 1 member contribution rate is established by State statute at 6 percent. The employer
contribution rate is developed by the Office of the State Actuary and includes an administrative expense
component that is currently set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts
Plan 1 employer contribution rates. The PERS Plan 1 required contribution rates (expressed as a
percentage of covered payroll) for 2017 were as follows:

PERS Plan 1
Actual Contribution Rates Employer Employee*
January - June 2017:
PERS Plan 1 6.23% 6.00%
PERS Plan 1 UAAL 4.77%
Administrative Fee 0.18%

Total 11.18% 6.00%
July - December 2017:
PERS Plan 1 7.49% 6.00%
PERS Plan 1 UAAL 5.03%
Administrative Fee 0.18%

Total 12.70% 6.00%

* For employees participating in JBM, the contribution rate was 12.26%.

PERS Plan 2/3 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as
two percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service for
Plan 2 and 1 percent of AFC for Plan 3. The AFC is the average of the member’s 60 highest-paid
consecutive service months. There is no cap on years of service credit. Members are eligible for
retirement with a full benefit at 65 with at least five years of service credit. Retirement before age 65 is
considered an early retirement. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have at least 20 years of service credit and
are 55 years of age or older, are eligible for early retirement with a benefit that is reduced by a factor that
varies according to age for each year before age 65. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have 30 or more years
of service credit and are at least 55 years old can retire under one of two provisions:
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o With a benefit that is reduced by three percent for each year before age 65; or
o  With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes stricter return-
to-work rules.

PERS Plan 2/3 members hired on or after May 1, 2013 have the option to retire early by accepting a
reduction of five percent for each year of retirement before age 65. This option is available only to those
who are age 55 or older and have at least 30 years of service credit. PERS Plan 2/3 retirement benefits
are also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. Other PERS Plan 2/3 benefits
include duty and non-duty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance (based on the CPI), capped at
three percent annually and a one-time duty related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of
Labor and Industries. PERS 2 members are vested after completing five years of eligible service. Plan 3
members are vested in the defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years of service; or after five
years of service if 12 months of that service are earned after age 44.

PERS Plan 3 defined contribution benefits are totally dependent on employee contributions and
investment earnings on those contributions. PERS Plan 3 members choose their contribution rate upon
joining membership and have a chance to change rates upon changing employers. As established by
statute, Plan 3 required defined contribution rates are set at a minimum of 5 percent and escalate to 15
percent with a choice of six options. Employers do not contribute to the defined contribution benefits.
PERS Plan 3 members are immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan.

Contributions

The PERS Plan 2/3 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the State
Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. The Plan 2/3 employer rates
include a component to address the PERS Plan 1 UAAL and an administrative expense that is currently
set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 2 employer and
employee contribution rates and Plan 3 contribution rates. The PERS Plan 2/3 required contribution
rates (expressed as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2017 were as follows:

PERS Plan 2/3
Actual Contribution Rates Employer 2/3 Employee 2*
January - June 2017:
PERS Plan 2/3 6.23% 6.12%
PERS Plan 1 UAAL 4.77%
Administrative Fee 0.18%
Employee PERS Plan 3 varies
Total 11.18% 6.12%
July - December 2017:
PERS Plan 2/3 7.49% 7.38%
PERS Plan 1 UAAL 5.03%
Administrative Fee 0,18%
Employee PERS Plan 3 Varies
Total 12.70% 7.38%
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* For employees participating in JBM, the contribution rate was 15.30% for January - June 2017 and
18.45% for July - December 2017.

The Port of Pasco’s actual PERS plan contributions were $134,583 to PERS Plan 1 and $153,021 to PERS
Plan 2/3 for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Law Enforcement Officers” and Fire Fighters’ Retirement System (LEOFF)

LEOFF membership includes all full-time, fully compensated, local law enforcement commissioned
officers, firefighters, and as of July 24, 2005, emergency medical technicians. LEOFF is comprised of two
separate defined benefit plans.

LEOFF Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined per
year of service calculated as a percent of final average salary (FAS) as follows:

e 20+ years of service - 2.0% of FAS
e 10-19 years of service - 1.5% of FAS
e 5-9years of service - 1% of FAS

The FAS is the basic monthly salary received at the time of retirement, provided a member has held the
same position or rank for 12 months preceding the date of retirement. Otherwise, it is the average of the
highest consecutive 24 months” salary within the last ten years of service. Members are eligible for
retirement with five years of service at the age of 50. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability
payments, a cost-of living adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found
eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries. LEOFF 1 members were vested after the completion
of five years of eligible service. The plan was closed to new entrants on September 30, 1977.

Contributions

Starting on July 1, 2000, LEOFF Plan 1 employers and employees contribute zero percent, as long as the
plan remains fully funded. The LEOFF Plan I had no required employer or employee contributions for
fiscal year 2017. Employers paid only the administrative expense of 0.18 percent of covered payroll.

LEOFF Plan 2 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as
two percent of the final average salary (FAS) per year of service (the FAS is based on the highest
consecutive 60 months). Members are eligible for retirement with a full benefit at 53 with at least five
years of service credit. Members who retire prior to the age of 53 receive reduced benefits. If the member
has at least 20 years of service and is age 50, the reduction is three percent for each year prior to age 53.
Otherwise, the benefits are actuarially reduced for each year prior to age 53. LEOFF 2 retirement benefits
are also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. Other benefits include duty and
non-duty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance (based on the CPI), capped at three percent
annually and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor and
Industries. LEOFF 2 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service.
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Contributions

The LEOFF Plan 2 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the State
Actuary to fully fund Plan 2. The employer rate included an administrative expense component set at
0.18 percent. Plan 2 employers and employees are required to pay at the level adopted by the LEOFF
Plan 2 Retirement Board. The LEOFF Plan 2 required contribution rates (expressed as a percentage of
covered payroll) for 2017 were as follows:

LEOFF Plan 2

Actual Contribution Rates Employer Employee
January - June 2017:
State and local governments 5.05% 8.41%
Administrative Fee 0.18%

Total 5.23% 8.41%
Ports and Universities 8.41% 8.41%
Administrative Fee 0.18%

Total 8.59% 8.41%
July - December 2017:
State and local governments 5.25% 8.75%
Administrative Fee 0.18%

Total 5.43% 8.75%
Ports and Universities 8.75% 8.75%
Administrative Fee 0.18%

Total 8.93% 8.75%

The Port of Pasco’s actual contributions to the plan were $11,025 for the year ended December 31, 2017.

The Legislature, by means of a special funding arrangement, appropriates money from the state General
Fund to supplement the current service liability and fund the prior service costs of Plan 2 in accordance
with the recommendations of the Pension Funding Council and the LEOFF Plan 2 Retirement Board.
This special funding situation is not mandated by the state constitution and could be changed by statute.
For the state fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, the state contributed $62,155,262 to LEOFF Plan 2.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability (TPL) for each of the DRS plans was determined using the most recent actuarial
valuation completed in 2017 with a valuation date of June 30, 2016. The actuarial assumptions used in
the valuation were based on the results of the Office of the State Actuary’s (OSA) 2007-2012 Experience
Study and the 2015 Economic Experience Study.

Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2016 actuarial
valuation report. The TPL was calculated as of the valuation date and rolled forward to the measurement
date of June 30, 2017. Plan liabilities were rolled forward from June 30, 2016, to June 30, 2017, reflecting
each plan’s normal cost (using the entry-age cost method), assumed interest and actual benefit payments.
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e Inflation: 3.0% total economic inflation; 3.75% salary inflation

e Salary increases: In addition to the base 3.75% salary inflation assumption, salaries are also
expected to grow by promotions and longevity.

e Investment rate of return: 7.5%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 report’s Combined Healthy Table and Combined Disabled
Table, published by the Society of Actuaries. The OSA applied offsets to the base table and recognized
future improvements in mortality by projecting the mortality rates using 100 percent Scale BB. Mortality
rates are applied on a generational basis; meaning, each member is assumed to receive additional
mortality improvements in each future year throughout his or her lifetime.

There were changes in methods and assumptions since the last valuation.

e For all plans except LEOFF Plan 1, how terminated and vested member benefits are valued was
corrected.

e How the basic minimum COLA in PERS Plan 1 is valued for legal order payees was improved.
e For all plans, the average expected remaining service lives calculation was revised.
e Forall plans, the average expected remaining service lives calculation was revised.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for all DRS plans was 7.5 percent.

To determine that rate, an asset sufficiency test included an assumed 7.7 percent long-term discount rate
to determine funding liabilities for calculating future contribution rate requirements. (All plans use 7.7
percent except LEOFF 2, which has assumed 7.5 percent). Consistent with the long-term expected rate
of return, a 7.5 percent future investment rate of return on invested assets was assumed for the test.
Contributions from plan members and employers are assumed to continue being made at contractually
required rates (including PERS 2/3, PSERS 2, SERS 2/3, and TRS 2/3 employers, whose rates include a
component for the PERS 1, and TRS 1 plan liabilities). Based on these assumptions, the pension plans’
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of 7.5 percent was used to
determine the total liability.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on the DRS pension plan investments of 7.5 percent was
determined using a building-block-method. In selecting this assumption, the Office of the State Actuary
(OSA) reviewed the historical experience data, considered the historical conditions that produced past
annual investment returns, and considered capital market assumptions and simulated expected
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investment returns provided by the Washington State Investment Board (WSIB). The WSIB uses the
capital market assumptions and their target asset allocation to simulate future investment returns over
various time horizons.

Estimated Rates of Return by Asset Class

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017, are summarized in the table below. The inflation component
used to create the table is 2.2 percent and represents the WSIB’s most recent long-term estimate of broad
economic inflation.

Target % Long-Term Expected Real
A ke Allocftion Rate gf Return Xrithmetic
Fixed Income 20% 1.70%
Tangible Assets 5% 4.90%
Real Estate 15% 5.80%
Global Equity 37% 6.30%
Private Equity 23% 9.30%

100%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability/ (Asset)

The table below presents the Port’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the Port’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.5 percent) or 1-
percentage point higher (8.5 percent) than the current rate.

Current Discount

1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase

(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
PERS 1 $ 1,276,951 $ 1,048,235 $ 850,118
PERS 2/3 $ 2,016,956 $ 748,655 $ (290,529)
LEOFF 2 $ 22,858 $ (105,630) $ (210,317)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the State’s pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued DRS financial report.

Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2017, the Port of Pasco reported a total pension liability of $1,796,890 for its proportionate
share of the net pension liabilities as follows:
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Liability
PERS 1 $ 1,048,235
PERS 2/3 $ 748,655

At June 30, 2017, the Port of Pasco reported a total pension asset of $105,630 for its proportionate share
of the net pension liabilities as follows:

(Asset)
LEOFF 2 $ (105,630)

At June 30, the Port of Pasco’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liabilities was as follows

Proportionate  Proportionate Change in
Share 6/30/16 Share 6/30/17 Proportion
PERS 1 0.023189% 0.022091 % -0.001098 %
PERS 2/3 0.024164% 0.021547 % -0.002617 %
LEOFF 2 0.008320% 0.007612% -0.000708 %

Employer contribution transmittals received and processed by the DRS for the fiscal year ended June 30
are used as the basis for determining each employer’s proportionate share of the collective pension
amounts reported by the DRS in the Schedules of Employer and Nonemployer Allocations for all plans except
LEOFF 1.

LEOFF Plan 1 allocation percentages are based on the total historical employer contributions to LEOFF
1 from 1971 through 2000 and the retirement benefit payments in fiscal year 2017. Historical data was
obtained from a 2011 study by the Office of the State Actuary (OSA). In fiscal year 2017, the state of
Washington contributed 87.12 percent of LEOFF 1 employer contributions and all other employers
contributed the remaining 12.88 percent of employer contributions. LEOFF 1 is fully funded and no
further employer contributions have been required since June 2000. If the plan becomes underfunded,
funding of the remaining liability will require new legislation. The allocation method the plan chose
reflects the projected long-term contribution effort based on historical data.

In fiscal year 2017, the state of Washington contributed 39.35 percent of LEOFF 2 employer contributions
pursuant to RCW 41.26.725 and all other employers contributed the remaining 60.65 percent of employer
contributions.

The collective net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the actuarial valuation
date on which the total pension liability (asset) is based was as of June 30, 2016, with update procedures
used to roll forward the total pension liability to the measurement date.

Pension Expense

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Port of Pasco recognized pension expense as follows:
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Pension Expense

PERS 1 $  (41,778)
PERS 2/3 $ 132,325
LEOFF 2 $ (7,219
TOTAL $ 83,328

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

At December 31, 2017, the Port of Pasco reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

PERS 1 Olztefflf)l;:;dof Deferred Inflows
of Resources
Resources
Differences between expected and actual $ - $ -
experience
Net difference between projected and actual ~ $ - $ (39,117)
investment earnings on pension plan
investments
Changes of assumptions $ - $ -
Changes in proportion and differences $ - $ -
between contributions and proportionate
share of contributions
Contributions subsequent to the $ 62,876 $ -
measurement date
TOTAL $ 62,876 $ (39,117)
PERS 2 Oll:l)ffiif)l;/l;zdo ¢ Deferred Inflows
of Resources
Resources
Differences between expected and actual $ 75,856 $ (24,622)
experience
Net difference between projected and actual ~ $ - $ (199,573)
investment earnings on pension plan
investments
Changes of assumptions $ 7952 $ -
Changes in proportion and differences $ 8572 $ (118,861)
between contributions and proportionate
share of contributions
Contributions subsequent to the $ 84,390 $ -
measurement date
TOTAL $176,771 $ (343,056)
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Deferred
LEOFF 2 Outflows of ~ Deferred Inflows
of Resources
Resources
Differences between expected and actual $ 4,643 $  (4,006)
experience
Net difference between projected and actual ~ $ - $ (23,715)
investment earnings on pension plan
investments
Changes of assumptions $ 127 $ -
Changes in proportion and differences $ 559 $ (12,521)
between contributions and proportionate
share of contributions
Contributions subsequent to the $ 5474 $ -
measurement date
TOTAL $ 15,838 $ (40,241)

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Port of Pasco contributions

subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the

year ended December 31, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of

resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended

December 31: Bl
2018 $  (26,441)
2019 $ 8,348
2020 $ (1,938)
2021 $  (19,086)
2022 $ -
Thereafter $ -

Year ended

December 31: HER SR
2018 $  (98,931)
2019 $ (1,846)
2020 $ (34,6898
2021 $  (95,558)
2022 $ (8,544)
Thereafter $ (11,108)

Year ended

December 31: RECES
2018 $ (14,079
2019 $ (717)
2020 $ 4,812)
2021 $ (11,196)
2022 $ 165
Thereafter $ 761
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Note 7 - Short Term Debt

The Port of Pasco currently has no short term debt.

Note 8 - Long Term Debt

A. Long-Term Debt

The Port of Pasco issues general obligation and Revenue bonds to finance the purchase of land
and the acquisition or construction of buildings and infrastructure. Bonded indebtedness has
also been entered into (currently and in prior years) to advance refund several general obligation
and revenue bonds. General obligation bonds have been issued for bother general government
and business-type activities and are being repaid from the applicable resources. The revenue
bonds are being repaid by proprietary fund revenues. The Port is also liable for notes that were
entered into for the purchase of land and the construction of buildings and infrastructure. These
notes are considered obligations of the general government and are being repaid with general

governmental revenue sources.

General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Maturity  Interest Original Amount of
Purpose
Range Rate Amount Installment
LTGO Bonds 2010 - Osprey Pointe Office 2030 3% -5% $4,415,000 $180,000
LTGO 2012 Ref. Bonds 2001 & 2004 2024 3%-4.2%  $2,220,000 $355,000
CERB Loan 2009 - Parsons Building 2024 1.50% $1,500,000 $23,100
HAEIF Loan 2013 - Land 2028 1.50% $1,000,000 $59,699

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

;::Zill;iiggl Principal Interest
2018 $734,546 $243,663
2019 $736,396 $222 919
2020 $763,302 $200,419
2021 $550,265 $177,013
2022 $572,286 $157,848

2023 - 2027 $2,255,174 $493,547
2028 - 2032 $975,499 $101,639
Total $6,587,468 $1,597,048

The revenue bonds currently outstanding are as follows:
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Maturity  Interest Original Amount of
Purpose
Range Rate Amount Installment
2014A Revenue Bond - Terminal Security 2032 2% -5% $19,755,000 $860,000
2014B Revenue Bond - Terminal Security 2034 4.00% $4,890,000 $0
Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:
gz::gll:irfi Principal Interest
2018 $885,000 $938,850
2019 $920,000 $903,450
2020 $960,000 $866,650
2021 $1,005,000 $818,650
2022 $1,060,000 $768,400
2023 - 2027 $6,100,000 $3,031,250
2028 - 2032 $7,480,000 $1,647,763
2033 - 2034 $3,445,000 $208,000
total $21,855,000 $8,975,013

In proprietary funds, unamortized debt issue costs are recorded as an asset and bonds are displayed net
of premium or discount; annual interest expense is decreased by amortization of debt premium and

increased by the amortization of debt issue costs and discounts.

Note 9 - Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

During the year ended December 31, 2017 the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Beginning Ad(li)itii;ns / Ending Due
Balance Period Reductions Balance Within
1/1/2017 P 12/31/2017 One Year
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds $7,170,997 114,094 $697,623 $6,587,468 $734,546
Revenue Bonds $22,715,000 $0 $860,000 $21,855,000 $885,000
Premiums $501,496 $0 $29,587 $471,909 $29,587
Total Bonds Payable $30,387,493 $114,094 $1,587,210  $28,914,377  $1,649,133
Compensated Absences $275,779 $228,916 $0 $504,695 $0
Pension/OPEB Obligations $2,461,997 $0 $665,107 $1,796,890 $0
Soils Clean-Up Liability $840,784 30 $299,698 $541,086 $0
Long-Term Liabilities:  $33,966,053 $343,010 $2,552,015 $31,757,048  $1,649,133
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Note 10 - Contingencies and Litigations

The Port of Pasco has recorded in its financial statements all material liabilities, including an estimate for
situations which are not yet resolved but where, based on available information, management believes
it is probable that the Port of Pasco will have to make payment. In the opinion of management, the Port’s
insurance policies and grants are adequate to pay all known or pending claims.

The Port participates in a number of federal and state assisted programs. These grants are subject to
audit by the grantors or their representatives. Such audits could result in requests for reimbursement to
grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants. Port management believes
that such disallowances, if any, would be immaterial.

Note 11 - Pollution Remediation Obligation

The Port is presently involved in a soils cleanup proceeding with the Department of Ecology along with
other parties at the marine terminal. In May of 1996 the Port entered into a settlement which set the
terms for the payment of cleanup costs. The agreement requires the Port to pay 37% of all remediation
costs. Total remediation costs are estimated at $1,837,772 and the Port’s portion of the liability is $679,772.
In 2017, updated cleanup estimates include 3 years totals, with scope contingency and sixteen years
passive cleanup (compliance monitoring, cleanup demonstration and well closure until 2036). The Port
receives 75% reimbursement of their 37% of the cleanup cost from the Washington State Department of
Ecology. The grant will expire in 2019. The total liability projected for the Port is $541,086.

Note 12 - Restricted Component of Net Position

Net Assets are generally reserved to indicate that a portion of Net Position have been externally restricted
for specific purposes. The amount reserved equals total restricted assets except for amounts intended
for payment of current payables and debt proceeds for construction purposes. In 2017, this amount is
listed under Restricted Assets in the Position section of the Comparative Statement of Net Position and
includes Passenger Facility Charges collected and not expended to date and a restricted Custom Share
account.

Note 13 - Risk Management

Port of Pasco is a member of Enduris. Chapter 48.62 RCW provides the exclusive source of local
government entity authority to individually or jointly self-insure risks, jointly purchase insurance or
reinsurance, and to contract for risk management, claims, and administrative services. Enduris was
formed July 10, 1987 pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 48.62 RCW, Chapter 200-100 WAC, and
Chapter 39.34 RCW. Two (2) counties and two (2) cities in the State of Washington joined together by
signing an interlocal governmental agreement to fund their self-insured losses and jointly purchase
insurance and administrative services. As of August 31, 2017, there are 540 Enduris members
representing a broad array of special purpose districts throughout the state. Enduris provides property
and liability coverage as well as risk management services and other related administrative services.
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Members make an annual contribution to fund Enduris and share in the self-insured retention of the
jointly purchased excess and/or reinsurance coverage. The self-insured retention is:

e $1,000,000 deductible on liability loss - the member is responsible for the first $1,000 of the
deductible amount of each claim, while Enduris is responsible for the remaining $999,000 on a
liability loss.

e $250,000 deductible on property loss - the member is responsible for $250,000 of the deductible
amount of each claim.

Enduris acquires reinsurance from unrelated insurance companies on a “per occurrence” basis to cover
all losses over the deductibles as shown on the policy maximum limits. Liability coverage is for all lines
of liability coverage including Public Official’s Liability. The Property coverage is written on an “all
risk”, blanket basis using current Statement of Values. The Property coverage includes but is not limited
to mobile equipment, boiler and machinery, electronic data processing equipment, business interruption,
course of construction and additions, property in transit, fine arts, cyber and automobile physical
damage to insured vehicles. Liability coverage limit is $20 million per occurrence and property coverage
limit is $1 billion per occurrence. Enduris offers crime coverage up to a limit of $1 million per occurrence.

Since Enduris is a cooperative program, there is a joint liability among the participating members.

The contract requires members to continue membership for a period of not less than one (1) year and
must give notice 60 days before terminating participation. The Master Agreement (Intergovernmental
Contract) is automatically renewed after the initial one (1) full fiscal year commitment. Even after
termination, a member is still responsible for contribution to Enduris for any unresolved, unreported
and in-process claims for the period they were a signatory to the Master Agreement.

Enduris is fully funded by its member participants. Claims are filed by members with Enduris and are
administered in house.

A Board of Directors consisting of seven (7) board members governs Enduris. Its members elect the
Board and the positions are filled on a rotating basis. The Board meets quarterly and is responsible for
conducting the business affairs of Enduris.

The Port participants in the State of Washington Labor and Industries workman’s compensation
program. However, management has elected to become self-insured through the Washington State
Employment Security Department on a reimbursement basis. Unemployment claims are processed by
the Washington State Employment Security Department. No reserve for self-insurance has been
established as the potential liability is not considered to be material to the financial statements.

Note 14 - Segment Information

The Port operates an airport and industrial centers which are primarily financed by user charges. The
property tax levy and interest on investments support the industrial centers. Operating revenues as
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presented include receipts derived from or for the operation of the port including, but not limited to

Airport User Charges (Landing fees and Parking Lot fees), Airport and Industrial Park Building and

Land Rental fees, Marine Terminal User fees (Wharfage and Dockage, and Container Service Fees),

Facilities rental fees and Operating Grants or assistance from other governmental entities. Operating

expenses are those expenses resulting from the ongoing operations of the Port of Pasco including, but

not limited to utilities, repair, maintenance, insurance and other costs of doing business. General and

Administrative expenses and Depreciation are included in operating net income but are listed separately.

Non-operating revenue and expenses include taxes from operations, interest income and expense,

miscellaneous sales, Grants or assistance from other governmental entities for capital expenditures and

nonrecurring items such as Sale of property. The key financial data for the year ended December 31,

2017, for these facilities are as follows:

I ial
ndustria Airport Total
Centers
Operating Revenues $2,994,256 $8,410,003 $11,404,259
Operating Expenses ($1,846,418)  ($4,099,731)  ($5,946,149)
General & Admin Expenses ($1,215,299)  ($1,767,667)  ($2,982,966)
Depreciation Expense ($2,165,351) ($5,266,156) ($7,431,507)
Operating Income (Loss) ($2,232,812)  ($2,723,551)  ($4,956,363)
Tax Revenues $2,133,001 $0 $2,133,001
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) $30,329  ($1,476,700)  ($1,446,371)
Capital Contributions $72,762 $2,590,652 $2,663,414
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position $3,280  ($1,609,600)  ($1,606,319)
Industrial Airport Total
Centers
Property, Plant & Equipment Increase (Decrease) $365,297  ($3,494,188) ($3,128,891)
Long Term Liabilities Payable from Operations $0 $0 ($22,715,000)

Note 15 - Formation of Public Corporation

The Port of Pasco Economic Development Corporation was formed on January 14, 1982 by the Port

Commissioners pursuant to the provisions of 1981 Washington laws Chapter 300 to promote local

economic development. Commissioners of the Port of Pasco also serve as directors of the Port of Pasco

Economic Development Corporation.

2017 Revenues of the Port of Pasco Economic Development Corporation amounted to $0.

The current balance in this account is $12,442.

Page 54



Port of Pasco
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Note 16 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plans

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 6, the Port provided post-retirement health care
benefits, to retired employees and their spouse, who retire after at least 10 years of service to the Port and
qualifies to receive benefits from the Washington State Public Employee Retirement System. As of
December 31, 2017, five (5) retirees met this eligibility requirement and sixteen employees are eligible for
this benefit upon retirement.

The Port covers an insurance policy for the retirees until they are eligible for Medicare or another medical
insurance plan at which time coverage ends. Employer contributions are financed on pay-as-you go
basis. Expenditures for post-retirement benefits are included in administrative fringe benefits since this
amount is not a significant liability.

During 2017, expenditures of $51,237 were recognized for post-retirement health care. This amount is
5% of our total benefit cost of $1,001,457 and 1% of the total employee payroll costs. Expenditures for
2016 and 2015 were $25,387 and $29,711 respectively.

Note 17 - Contributed Capital

GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non Exchange Transactions, addresses
accounting for non-exchange transactions and was adopted by the Port of Pasco effective January 1, 2001.
The statement requires that contributed capital be recognized as revenue in the current year. Prior to
adopting GASB Statement No. 33, the Port of Pasco included capital in the equity section on the balance
sheet as capital contributions.

Note 18 - Prior Period Adjustments

During the year ended December 31, 2017, errors of $2,335,810 were found related to capitalizing interest
costs related to debt during construction, $495,342 were found in recognition of due from other
governments, $208,022 were found in recognition of accounts receivable, $143,065 were found in
recognition of prepaid expenses, $114,094 were found in recognition of bonds, notes, and loans payable,
$41,639 were found in recognition of accrued interest, $535,456 were found in recognition of construction
in progress, $8915 were found in recognition of deferred inflows related to pensions, and $290 were
found in recognition of deferred outflows related to pensions. The errors were made in fiscal years 2014,
2015 and 2016. The errors have been corrected in the 2017 accounting year and the impact has been
shown as an adjustment to beginning net position on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes
in fund net position. The total adjustments to the net position is $2,565,704 which restated the December
31, 2016 net position from $109,351,776 to $111,917,479.

Note 19 - Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

There have been no material violations of finance-related legal or contractual provisions.

Page 55



(g red ‘g ggvO) paseq are ue[d uorsuad e 03 suonnqriyuod Yorym uo [joided ayy st [[orhed paroao)) ,

*9[qe[TeA® SI UOTJEULIOJUI UYDIYM I0J SIEIA 9SOV} 10§ A[UO U0 eULIOJUI Juasaid p[noys sjuswuisarog “parduwiod si puasy 1eak-QT [[0J € [U[] .

:3[NPAYDS 0} SAION
% % % % % % % %V 19 %€0°LS %0169 Arqer|
uorsuad [e303 Y jo o8ejusdrad
e se uontsod jou Arenpry uel g
% % % % % % % %91 1% %S6'6Y %CL LY [o14ed pazanod
jo 9dejuadiad e se Ariqer|
uorsuad jau auy jo areys
areuonprodoid s rofordug
-8 - s - - $ - $ - § - 5 69veTs oveesb’ts  8eS€T9TS sjo1ked paranod
- $ - $ - - $ - $ - $ - ¢ CGeT'sP0'T$  6SC’SYTI$  SL0TST'TS TVIOL
- $ - $ - - $ - $ - $ - $ CETVOTS  6SESVTI$  SLOTSTTS Aiqer
uotsuad jou a3 Jo areys
ayeuonodoid s akordug
% % % % % % % %160CC00  %681€C00  %9c6€C00 (10sse) Apiqer] uorsuad jou
ays jo uonprodoid s zokojdwyg

j\é 10T 020¢ 610C 810C LT0C 9102 S10C

xSTedX Teds1 0T Ise]
L10T ‘0€ aunf jo sy
I S¥dd
bﬂm&ﬂ.ﬁ.— UuoIsu9d 9N 9Y3} Jo o1eys QHMQOE.HO&OHAH JO a[npaysg
oosed jo Jod

Page 56



(g red ‘g ggvO) paseq are ue[d uorsuad e 03 suonnqriyuod Yorym uo [joided ayy st [[orhed paroao)) ,

*9[qe[TeA® SI UOTJEULIOJUI UYDIYM I0J SIEIA 9SOV} 10§ A[UO U0 eULIOJUI Juasaid p[noys sjuswuisarog “parduwiod si puasy 1eak-QT [[0J € [U[] .

2[NpaydS 03 S9OJON

% % % % % % % %L6'06 %8G8 %0C 68 Arqer|
uorsuad [e303 Y jo o8ejusdrad
e se uontsod jou Arenpry uel g
% % % % % % % %0%'6C %08'8% %TETE [o14ed paianod
jo 9dejuadiad e se Ariqer|
uorsuad jau auy jo areys
areuonprodoid s rofordug
-8 - s - - $ - $ - § - 5 69veTs oveesb’ts  8eS€T9TS sjo1ked paranod
- $ - $ - - $ - $ - $ - ¢ Geo'svL$ 8€99TT’I$  81S006$ TVIOL
- $ - $ - - $ - $ - $ - $ <GQ9'svL$ 8C991C'T$  8IS'006$ Aiqer
uotsuad jou a3 Jo areys
ayeuonodoid s akordug
% % % % % % % %LFSTTO0  %F9TFCO0  %E0TSTO0 (10sse) Apiqer] uorsuad jou
ays jo uonprodoid s zokojdwyg

j\é 10T 020¢ 610C 810C LT0C 9102 S10C

xSTedX Teds1 0T Ise]
L10T ‘0€ aunf jo sy
e\t sudd
bﬂm&ﬂ.md UuoIsu9d 9N 9Y3} Jo o1eys QudﬂOﬂHOm—Ohm JO a[npaysg
oosed jo Jod

Page 57



(g ~redgo gSvD) paseq aze uepd uorsuad e 03 suon3qriyug) \PIYN uo [jorked ayy st [jorded paroromJ

*9[qe[TeA® ST UO}RULIOJUI IDIY ) 10J STeaA 9s01]} 10§ AJUO UoTeurIojur jusasaid pr3oys sjusuwuiso gpaniduwa) st puas reak-g/ [[83 € [nund

:_[NPAYDS 03 SAJON

% % % % % % % %STTLL % ‘0°S0Z %CS LLL Aiqer
uorsuad e303 a3 Jo 3 ,eyuiad
e se uonisod jou Aren3p1y ue[d

% % % % % % % %8L" - % ‘€L %L0°T- fo14ed sakordwo paroa
jo 9 ,eyuyiad e se Ayiqer

uorsuad jau 9y} Jo d1eys

areuonrodoid s xefojduryg

- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ €ThS'BIS  0BICHIS FIHIIDIS [[o14ed

sakordwe paroag) s rokordwy
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - ¢ (01980%)  (9¢cwV ‘$) (cemezs) TVIOL
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - ¢ (01980s%8) (9¢KY $) (ce®ETH) Kypiqer

uotsuad jou a3 Jo areys
ayeuonodoid s akordug

% % % % % % % %945C000  %09TF000  %SESCO0'0 (19sse) Lyrrqery uorsuad jou
ays jo uonprodoid s zokojdwyg

¥coc €20¢ ¢a0c ird\74 020¢ 610C 810¢ L10¢ 910¢ <10C

xSTedX Teds1 01 Ise]
L10T ‘0€ 2unf jo sy
T 41091
bﬂm&ﬂ.ﬁ.— UuoIsu9d 9N 9Y3} Jo o1eys QHMQOE.HO&OHAH JO a[npaysg
oosed jo Jod

Page 58



(8 1ed ‘g8 ASVD) suonnqriuod saquiawr pred-rafojduws apnjpur jou op suonnquiuo) IVV I SYHd Yl punj
Jey}  SUONNALIIUOd T SYHSI PUe ¢ /7 SHHd Jo uontod oy sepnyout sty T SYAJ 104 ueld sy 03 suonnqriyuod 1eAojdue [enjoe are suonpnqLyuo)) 4

(g red “zg ggvD) paseq aze ueld uorsuad e 03 suonNqLIIUOd Yorym uo [jorked ayy st [jorded paisro) ,

*9[qe[IeA® SI UOIJEULIOJUI UDIYM IO0J SIEIA 9SOL[} 10§ A[UO UOI eULIOJUI Juasaid p[noys sjusawIarod “paiduwiod st puasy 1eak-QT [[NJ € [U[] .

:3[NPAYOS 03 SAJON

% % % % % % % %6C°S %S0°S %68 [1014ed pa1anod jo
a3ejuaniad e se suonnqruo)
- - - - $ - $ - $ - $  6LV9¥ST$  0FECevTS 8€S'€T9TS «[1014ed pazaro)
- - - - % - %8 - 8§ - § 08 0$ 0% (s500%2)
Adusnyep uonnqrIyuo))
- - - - % - $ - ¢ - ¢ (esg¥ery) (co0'9cr$)  (1£¥0z19) +SuOnINQLIUod parmbar
A[renyoenuod 10 A[Lroinye)s
9y} 0} UOHL[I Ul SUORNJLIU0D)
- - - - % - % - % - $ €89¥EIs$ 200°9¢1$ TL¥0TT$ suonnqriuod parmba
Arenyoeiuod 10 AJLoinjelg

¥coc €20C rad\14 TT0C 020¢ 610C 810¢ L10T 910C S10C

Page 59

«STEdX TedST] 0T Ise1
L10T ‘T€ 13quiadz( jo sV
[ S¥4dd
suonnqriuo) rfojdury jo a[npaydg
0dseJ JO 10



(£ Ted ‘g4 ASVD) suonnqriuod saquiaw pred-rafofduwe apnjpurt jou op suonnquiuo) IVV I SYHd Yl punj
Jey}  SUONNALIIUOd T SYHSI PUe ¢ /7 SHHd Jo uontod oy sepnyout sty T SYAJ 104 ueld sy 03 suonnqriyuod 1eAojdue [enjoe are suonpnqLyuo)) 4

(g -red ‘¢z ggvD) paseq aze ueld uorsuad e 03 suonnNqLIIUOd Yorym uo [jorked ayy st [jorded pa1sro) ,

"9[qe[IeA® SI UOIJRULIOJUI UDIYM I0J SIEIA 9SOL} 10§ A[UO UOI eULIOJUI Juasaid p[noys sjuswIarod “paiduwiod s1 puasy 1eak-97 [[NJ € [U[]

:3[NPAYOS 03 SAJON

% % % % % % % %190 %6C'8 %TLY [1014ed pa1anod jo
a3ejuaniad e se suonnqruo)
- - - - $ - $ - $ - $ Cev'o¥ecs  9FLeSrTs  ££8'cc0ts «[1014ed pazaro)
- - - - % - %8 - 8§ - § 9% 9% 9% (s500%2)
Adusnyep uonnqrIyuo))
- - - - % - $ - % - ¢ (eoesty) (asr'1erd)  (9LF°019) +SuOnINQLIUod parmbar
A[renyoenuod 10 A[Lroinye)s
9y} 0} UOHL[I Ul SUORNJLIU0D)
- - - - $ - $ - $ - $  T129es1$ SLY'TETS 9/¥'0C1$ suonnqriuod painbar
Arenyoeiuod 10 AJLoinjelg

¥coc €20C rad\14 TT0C 020¢ 610C 810¢ L10T 910C S10C

Page 60

*muﬁ@? ﬁmuwmm cﬁ jse]
LT0T “I€ Toquada( Jo sy
¢/c S¥Ad
suoynqryuo)) 1d34ordury jo apnpaydg
odseJ Jo 310J



)€ "TeJ09¢ SV Dy SUOLINGLIIUOD IS PresgIa AO[AWD SPNOUL J0U Op SUOUNALIIUO - "TVV T SYHd D3 pun(
JED}  SUOHNALIIUOD 9 SYHSJ PUe 7 /9 S H (0 U0nIOA )} sopnoul SD) T SYHAJ 10 "Ue[A 3D} 0} SUOHNALIJUOD ISAO[AWS [eNnjOe dIe SUORNJLYUO -

)G "TRAQ9E SV O, PISE] 918 UB[A UOISUIA B 0} SUOTINGLIU0D DOM UO [[0IARA 3D} SI [[OIARA PAIOXO -

*9[qe[Iexe SI U0 euLIo(UI )ONM I0( SIeaA 950D} 10( A[UO U0 eULIO(UI JUSSIIA P[NODS SJUSWIULIIX0S(PI[IAWIOD SI puat) 1eagyT [[n( e [nuny

:3[NPAYOS 03 SAJON

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%LV %19Y %99V

[[o1AeA paraxod (0
93ejuadIaA € sk suonnqryuo -

8 $ 8 8 8 $ 8 $ 8 $ 8 ¢ deH299%  vLOTdD9S €299 09% y[[o1dea paraxo -
8 ¢ 8 8 8 $ 8 $ 8 $ 8 $ ¥ 7% $ )ss30 3o,
Aoueni(ep uonngriuo -
8 $ 8 8 8 $ 8 $ 8 $ 8 $  )SOOTTS. ) “9DITGx )LV OTT$x ysuonnqriuod parmbai
A[renyoenuod 10 A[Lroinye)s
3D} 0} UOHL[AI Ul SUORNJLIUO -
8 $ 8 8 8 $ 8 $ 8 $ 8 $ GOMITS 9091% Ly 0T1$ suonnqLIuod parmbar
Arenyoeiuod 10 AJLoinjelg
¥coc €20C rad\14 TT0C 020¢ 610C 810¢ L10T 910C S10C
«STe3X [edSL] O 35T
L10T “I€ 13quuiadd( Jo sy
¢ 440191

suonnqriuo) rfojdury jo a[npaydg
0dseJ JO 10

Page 61



"Jusuae)s sy} jo 3red [erdayur ue are spremy [eIOPay Jo sarmjrpuadxy Jo anpaydg ayj 03 sajou Jurdueduwoooe ay T,

Page 62

78G°€SL'C$  TBS'ESLTS 0$ :papuadxy spiemy [e1apaf [ejol,
0007053 0007053 0% :2drawo)) jo juaunreda( ‘S [eIOL
[ 000705$ 000'05$ 0$ $000€0€VHSITAL €0CTL premy vdad dordwwo) Jo yusuupreda
dordurwo)) jo jusunreda( ‘SN
66778€$ 667F8€$ 0$ :fjundag puepwoy jo judunredad 'S [eI0L
, § § _ ) we1301 ] JUSWISINGUITSY] 9JeLIL)AIDAG UoneSIUIpPY (1S0O) A1e1a109G
[ 1C6CIIS TC6'CLTS 0% TSQ9UTS-H-9T-C0SLSH  SZ0°26 OO0 JUIWIIIOJUY ME'] au} Jo 20130 uoneyodsuer] jo jusunredagy
, , , ) UOTJEDJIPOIA AY[IDB,] WIRISAG  9JLLIL}AIDAG UORRNSIUIUPY (1S0) ATe1a109G
ct 196°1$ 196°1$ 0% 100IdVO6L8I0Y0L0L  SL0'Z6 Suruaaiog a8e83eg auruy ay) jo 201530 uornyeyrodsuer] jo yusurredag
, , , o ) wysAg Surppuer] 9JeLIL}AIDAG UoHeNSIUIUpPY (1S0) A1e19109G
[ 809'69C$ 809'69¢$ 0$ LIOTID-H-9T-¥0SISH  SZ0°Z6 a8eSSeq oury-uj uSsa( ot} Jo 201350 UoneyIodsuei] jo Juaunredaq
Ajrmodag puepawoy jo juaunreda ‘'s'n
€80°61€C$  €80°61€°C$ 0$ :uoyeprodsueny, yo juaunreds( ' 0 [eI0L
, — I _ ) werdor] (VV) Uonensmurupy UoneIAy
[ 660'870C$  660°870°CH 0% LI0T-¥¥-9%00-c9-€ 901°0¢ s aoxdu Jrodiry [e10pay uoneyrodsue] jo yueunreda]
, ) weidor] (VV ) uonensmurupy UoneIAy
¢t 0% 0% 0% ST0C-€7-9700-c57¢ 9010c juawaoxduy yrodiry [exdpay uonerodsuer], jo jusunreds
. . . . wer3o1] (VV ) uonensunupy uoneray
¢t 160'8S 160'8% 0% PL0CCy-9700-cS-¢ 90L0c juawaaoxduy yrodiry [exapay] uoneyrodsuer], jo juawredaq
’ . . . weidorq (VV4) uonensmuiupy uonerAy
[ $6829¢$ $68°C9C$ 0% FT0C-TF-9700-c9-€ 901°0¢ uowoaroxduy jrodiry [e1opa uoneytodsuei] jo jusunreda]
uonejrodsuer] jo yuaunredsa ‘s’ N
spremy
34 ©)0 mﬂwﬂsdw yanomyy Rquny ‘q[ P pqunN aureN weido1J [eIpd ]
9jouj00g 7oL Parid -sseJ QUAN "d'T4PHO vaid N d [#1°Pd ySnomnyy, ssej/oureN Aouady [erapag
woxry R
sarmjrpuadxy

LTI0T ‘I€ 12quiada papuq Ieax 3yj 10]

spremy [erdpaq jo sarnjrpuadxqg jo a[npayog

9T AMpayds
odse Jo 3104



"90URPIND) WLIOJIU() Y} JI9PUN PIMO[E 1T }SOD 10ITPUT STWIUTW 3P JuddIad-(T a3 3sn 03 Pajda[d 10U sey 110 3L,

3¥ey 35S0 102IIpU] - / 910N

“UMOUS Uey} a1ouw are “uoniod s,00seJ Jo 110 9}
Surpnpour “s3s0o werdoad axmuy sysod werdoid oy jo uonaod juerd erepay oYy ATuo jyuasarder sarnjrpuadxa I1ea JUSLIND S UMOYS Sjunowre ayJ,

$1S0) WeIZ0I] - ¢ 910N

‘Sununoooe jo
SISeq [eNIdOk [[NJ © S3SN 00SeJ JO MO S, "SIUSWd)L)S [RIDULULJ S,00S€ ] JO 0] Y} st Sununodoe Jo siseq awes ay} uo paredaid st apnpayps smy,

SUMUNOY JO SISeq - [ 910N

LI0T ‘I€ 13quiada( papuy IeaX 3y3 104
SpIeMy [e1dpa] Jo sainjipuadxyg Jo a[npaydg 3Yj 03 S9JON
odseJ jo 3o0J

Page 63



86/'G00°T $  90L7TEST  $  68FcSL $  L60°LCST $  698°LSC DSd-00-D-01-¥1 01# uonesrddy
LTOT “T€ T2quiada(q papuy 1eax

8€/'00°T $  €eg/Cl'l  $  L9T¢ $ CCI'ToF $  206'8TLT DSd-00-D-01-F1 01# uonedrddy
LTI0T ‘L€ I_dquada (] papus 1pyen)d

206°8TL1 $ - $  TLTSHL $  0TT06€ $  0TF'e6S DSd-00-D-01-¥1 01# uonesrddy
L10C \Om hwn—am“—&wm muwﬁﬂw HQU—MMSO

01%'06S $ €SIS0 $ €88C $  G8TFee $ 961109 DSd-00-D-01-¥1 01# uonesrddy
L10T ‘0€ dun{ papua 1a31enQ

961109 $ - $  9T'290C $ 0869CTHE $  698°LSC DSd-00-D-01-¥T 01# uonesrddy
L10T “I€ Y2IeJA papud 1231enQ

Jdd
parepmbrun samjipuadxy  paureq 3saIdjuy usﬂmWszoU wuﬁﬂmw— w:mMMmem werdorg
souereg Surpuy MDAd  Ddd paepmbrjun

Page 64

LI0T ‘T€ I2quiadd( papuy 1eaX Y3 104
Pasn pue pIaH ‘pa3231[0D
sadrey) A1e] 193udsseJ Jo Ianpayds

yodmy sanIy-IiL,
odseJ Jo 30J



Port of Pasco
Tri-Cities Airport
Notes to the Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges
Collected, Held and Used
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Note 1 - Basis of Accounting

This schedule is prepared generally on the same basis of accounting as the Port’s financial statements.
However, while the Port uses the full or modified-accrual basis of accounting where revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred, the PFC revenues presented
represent only those revenues actually received for the quarter reported. PFC revenues not received
prior to the end of each quarter are not accrued and are reported as revenues of the subsequent
reporting period.

Note 2 - Program Costs

The amounts shown as current year revenues and expenses represent only the Passenger Facility
Charges portions of the project costs. Entire project costs may be more than shown.
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE

The State Auditor's Office is established in the state’'s Constitution and is part of the executive
branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and serves
four-year terms.

We work with our audit clients and citizens to achieve our vision of government that works for
citizens, by helping governments work better, cost less, deliver higher value, and earn greater
public trust.

In fulfilling our mission to hold state and local governments accountable for the use of public
resources, we also hold ourselves accountable by continually improving our audit quality and
operational efficiency and developing highly engaged and committed employees.

As an elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence necessary to objectively
perform audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with professional standards
as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws.

Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the
part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of
higher education. In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local
governments as well as fraud, state whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.

The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available on
our website and through our free, electronic subscription service.

We take our role as partners in accountability seriously, and provide training and technical
assistance to governments, and have an extensive quality assurance program.

Contact information for the State Auditor’s Office

Public Records requests | PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov

Main telephone | (360) 902-0370

Toll-free Citizen Hotline | (866) 902-3900

Website | www.sao.wa.qov
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http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/FraudProgram.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/Whistleblower.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/CitizenHotline.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/Pages/default.aspx
https://portal.sao.wa.gov/saoportal/Login.aspx
mailto:PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov
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